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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

CGrace Church is located on the north side of Route 632, just south of U.S.
Route 60, in the middle of Cumberiand County. The brick structure was constructed
1840~43 and is a well-preserved example of Roman, Greek, and Gothic Revival ele-
ments on a temple~-form country church. Its outside dimensions are approximately
32" x 48" with a small vestry attached at the rear.

The church sits on a brick foundation with air holes for ventilation. The
walls are constructed of even-colored 3" x 8" unglazed, hand-packed bricks with
very precise mortar joints. The south (front) and east sides are both of Flemish
bond, the north side is of five~course American bond, and the west side is of
four-course American bond with Flemish variant. The mortar joints preserve
original pencxllmv,

Triplewhung windows with 12/12 sash are found on all elevations. The windows
are hung with louvred shutters and 8" rectilinear moldings topped by ramped
lintels. The lintels have 6"~square corner blocks.. Above the entrance is a
lancet transom with intersecting tracery, and the window in the gympanum is
similarly treated. The first bay on the east side is a jib window which is
said to have been used for funerals. A handsome cove cornice ruans along the
perimeter of the roof and defines the front and rear pediments. The roof is
covered by Buckingham slate. Two small chimneys are later additions, as is a
small wooden cross above the pediment.

The interior is a single room with the vestry in a later addition behind the

sanctu¢ry, The nave has two main aisles formed by the placement of the original

' pews. The freestanding set of center pews is larger than the side pews, which
are slightly angled and attached to the side walls. The gallery on the south
‘wall has one center aisle and two side aisles. Two Doric columns and pilasters
on the side walls support the gallery. Above the columns is a dentiled entab-
lature topped by a railing with turned balusters. An enclosed stairway on the
east sidé of the building leads to the gallery. On one side of the stair is
beaded diagonal paneling. There is no stair rail.

On the north wall is the pulpit, enclosed in a U-shaped comrmunion rail with’ ¢
rectangular rungs. The pulpit is paneled and has a bold Greek fret in the frieze,
reflecting the use of plates 52, 63, and 64 of Asher Benjamin's Practical House .
Carpenter (1830) in its design. A marble baptismal font is located to the east g

of the pulpit,

Still in place in the church are two elaborate cast~iron, wood~burning stoves,
bearing the maker's name, 'Leibrandt & McDowell, Philadelphia & Baltimozre." A
paneled dado with a chair rail runs the perimeter of the main room. The flooring
is of unfinished wood, and the walls and ceilings are plastered.

A small cemetery is located to the rear (north) of the church, which is sited
in a hilly, wooded area just above Ca Ira pond on the Willis River.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Grace Church, Ca Ira, survives as a charming illustration of the stylistic
hybridization that occurred with Romantic Revivalism in the antebellum period.
Unlike many of its similarly imaginative contemporaries, Grace Church is devoid
of architectural naivete and is at once a skillful blending of Roman, Greek,
and Gothic Revival elements, all executed with supexb craftsmansbip“ Its
temple form and fine brlckwork are an offspring of Virginia's Jelfersonian
tradition, while its CGreek and CGothic details are adapted from builders'
pattern books. The church was erected in 1840-43 by Valentine Parrish, a
local master builder, and is one of the only remaining buildings of Ca Ira,

a town laid out in 1787 which prospered briefly in the antebel}um,per1od as a
milling and tobacco warehouse center,

The General Assembly established Ca Ira in 1796 on a site overlooking the
Willis River in Cumberland County. The town probably tock its name from a
popular French revolutionary marching song meaning "it will go" ox 'the Revolution
will triumph." Since popular enthusiasm for the Freach Revolution was especially
exuberant in Virginia throughout the 1790s, it is plausible that this enthusiasm
found expression in the naming of the new town. Ca Ira failed to develop until
the completion of the Willis River canal in 1825, Besides ridding the town of
an unhealthful pond, the canal facilitated the shipment of tobacco from Prince
Edward and Charlotte counties to Richmond and Petersburg via the James River,
Commerce quickened as a class of merchants arose in the town. Mertin's Gazetteer
of 1836 described Ca Tra as a post village with a population of 210, Ac»ordlng
to the gazetteer, the town then contained forty dwellings, three stores, a mer-
chant mill processing approximately thirty thousand bushels of wheat annually,

a tobacco warchouse, two taverns, and a masonic hall,

Completion of Grace Church in 1843 not only gave Ca Ira its largest and
most distinguished building, it also brought new life to surrounding Littleton
parish, which had been inactive since 1813, DBishop William Mead® reported in
1857 that the church was "in constant use," serving both the town community
and the neighboring Cumberland plantations. The pillars of the church were the
most prominent families of the town: the John C. Pages, Alexander Trents, Cary
Blmmons,Goudrich Wilsons, and Valentine Parrishes, who donated the lot on which
the new church was erected, The transformation of Littleton from an inactive
to a flourishing parish reflected in a small mirror the larger revival of the
Episcopal Church in Virginia in the decades just prior to the Civil War,

Builder as well as benefactor of Grace Church, Valentine Parrish worked
with Dabney Cosby on the Jef{erxonlan style Goochland County Courthouse of 1826

(See Continuation Sheet #1)
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6. REPRESENTATION TN EXISTING SURVEYS:

-(2) Historic American Buildings Survey
1973 Federal
Library of Congress/Washington, D. C.

(3) Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Survey
1968, 1969, 1980 State
Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission
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7. DESCRIPTION ~ BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION;

The nominated property consists of two-thirds of an acre (approximately)
and includes the church cemeteries and church building. The acreage follows
the lines of the original deed as recorded in the Cumberland County Deed
Book 25, p. 494 (November 12, 1843): T

a certain lot or parcel of ground adjoining the
town of Ca Ira on the West, and bounded as fol-
lows. Orig. on the South by the Main road from
Ca Ira to Buckingham Ct. House, West by the line
separating it from McAshan's 0l1d Stemmery Lot,
on which the fence now runs North by the road
leading into said stemmery and, East by the
Western Crop Street of the town of Ca Ira, it
being the lot, as now enclosed whereon the
New Episcopal Church , called Grace Church, has.
been recently erected, containing about two
thirds of an acre, together with all the appur-
tenances thereunto belonging.

RCC

8. SIGNIFICANCE:

and is listed with Cosby as "architect" on the courthouse cornerstone. Cosby
had earlier worked under Thomas Jefferson at the building of the University
of Virginia, but Parrish's connection to Jefferson is unknown. The use of
Greek Revival-style architraves and the design of the pulpit in Grace Church

(See Continuation Sheet #2)




HR-8-300A
(11/78>
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FGRM

CGrace Chwwch, Ca ira, Cuwmbevlaund County, Virginia

COMTINUATION SHEET #2 ITEM NUMBER S & ¢  pPAGE 2, 1

TFICAICE:

8. SI

vjamin's Practical louse Carpenter of 183J. The

show the influence of Asher Fen
pulpit design is taken specifica

pattern book. One of the Parrish's slavesz, Albert Kann, is said to have been
responsible for the woodwork and framing. Yarrich was a leading citizen of
Cumberland Ccunty during the 1840s and 1850s. Ue signed and presented several

petitions to the CGeneral Assembly on questions of tolls and economic aid to
the county.

Ca Ira reached its zenith in the mid~-1550s (when the town incorporated its
first aand only bank), only to decline rapidly in population after the Civil War,
Grace Church fell isto desuetude and, like many other buildings in the town,
was abandoned at the end of the 15th century. Listed as a 'Ypost hamlet'" in
the Lippincott World Gazetteer in 1906, the rOWn at the beginning of the 20th
century had only two stores, a post office, and a few residences, apart from
the abandoned church building and the remnants of a tobacco warchouse, three
blacksmith shops, a saw mill, a grist mill, and a miller's house. Except for
the church building, only the millex's house stands today.

Mot until 1928 did descendants of the orlﬂlnal congregation of Grace
Church organize the Ca Ira Restoration Society, which raised the funds to
rehabilitate and zeoto”e the chuxch soon thereafter. After blocking an at
tempt by the Diocese sell the property, the Society in 1854 successfull
reinstituted the anmu%l homecoming services which had been helé regularly
the 1930s, The Socieiy has since maintained the church and grounds in goo
repair., To preserve its preseat status as a "shrine” of the Diocese of
Southern Virginia, Grace Church must hold at least one rveligious service a
year,
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